
SPECIAL MEETING HELD BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

FOR THE TOWN OF OCEAN RIDGE, FLORIDA, TO BE HELD IN THE TOWN 

HALL ON THURSDAY, MAY 21, 1998, AT 8:00 A.M. 

 

The meeting was called to order and roll call was answered by the following: 

 

  Commissioner Smith    Commissioner Gimmy 

 Commissioner Lucibella   Vice Chairman Bingham 

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. March 17, 1998 

 

Mr. Gimmy moved to approved the minutes as submitted, seconded by Mr. Lucibella.  

 

Motion carried – Yea (4). 

 

IV. REORGANIZATION 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak advised that due to the recent resignation of Bud Ford from the 

Commission the members must decide whom the next Chairman and possibly Vice 

Chairman would be.  She offered that the Commission might want to wait until all four of 

the regular members are present before making this decision.  The members concurred 

and added that Vice Chairman Bingham would chair the meeting until a decision is made. 

 

V. DISCUSS DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 508 AMENDING SECTION 26-109. 

DUNE PRESERVATION TO ALLOW FOR REMOVAL OF PROHIBITED 

PLANT SPECIES. 

 

Vice Chairman Bingham read the entire title of the proposed ordinance. 

 

Town Manager Lanker advised that this item was brought up several months ago by a  

Commissioner who suggested that permission be granted to residents wanting to remove 

exotics from the dune without requiring a permit or Commission approval.  Mr. Lanker 

stated that he felt this ordinance could alleviate some time and expense to residents and 

added that it makes sense to loosen the ordinance.  

 

Vice Chairman Bingham stated that the intent of the ordinance should be for the 

opportunity to remove exotic species while they are small.  However, she questions 

whether the ordinance specifies what invasive plants could be removed.  Mr. Lucibella 

advised that a list is located elsewhere in the code.  Atty Nicoletti advised that the 

ordinance could reference the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) list 

of exotic species.  Mrs. Bingham felt this was a good idea.  Mr. Gimmy commented that 

he agreed and added that the Town should provide guidelines but not micro-manage. 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak advised that the proposed ordinance would make it unnecessary for  

residents to obtain Commission approval or receive a permit from the Town.  Mr. 



SPECIAL MEETING OF P & Z COMMISSION ON May 21, 1998 

 2

Lucibella questioned the citation process.  Mr. Lanker advised that the Town normally 

has verbal discussions with the resident and proceeds with a citation to appear before the 

Special Master if compliance is not met. 

 

Mr. Gimmy moved to recommend approval of the proposed ordinance with an 

amendment that the SFWMD list of invasive plants be referenced in the code, seconded 

by Mr. Lucibella.   

 

Motion Carried: Yea (4) 

 

VI. DISCUSS DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 509 AMENDING SECTION 26-221. 

GRANDFATHERED USES, LOTS AND STRUCTURES TO CLARIFY THE 

INTENT OF THE TOWN COMMISSION REGARDING PERMITTED USE 

ADDITIONS TO GRANDFATHERED STRUCTURES. 

 

Town Manager Lanker explained that the recent settlement of a lawsuit regarding 

grandfathered structures has caused a lot of controversy during the last year.   He added 

that the staff was proposing an ordinance to clarify what could possibly be permitted with 

or without the requirement for a variance hearing.   

 

Mr. Lanker then distributed a drawing explaining four different case scenarios, which 

would or would not require a variance with the adoption of this proposed ordinance.  

Example #1 and #2 showed boxed areas within the existing footprint of the residence.  He 

advised that the proposed ordinance would permit the conversion of these two areas into 

living space without requiring a variance.  He added that these two examples were 

permitted prior to the lawsuit without requiring a variance.  He then explained that 

Example #3 showed an addition to the existing footprint but not located within the 

setbacks would also be permitted without a variance if all other zoning requirements were 

met.  Example #4 was an addition to the footprint of the residence located within the 

setback area and would therefore require a variance.  Example #5 was anything occurring 

in the setback area and totally outside the existing footprint of the residence.  

 

Mr. Lanker stated that he believes the intent of the code is to allow Examples 1-3 

provided the nonconformance is not expanded.  Atty Nicoletti commented that in the 

Pace settlement he felt it was better to resolve the suit and amend the code later. 

 

Vice Chairman Bingham commented that the problem with utilizing a garage as living 

space was that vehicles are then forced to park in the driveway or street and she feels that 

it may be a downgrade rather than upgrade.  She also stated that there might be problems 

with septic systems.  Mr. Lanker advised that each residence must provide for 2 offstreet 

parking spaces.   

 

Mr. Lucibella clarified his interpretation of increasing the noncompliance and suggested 

amending the code by adding “notwithstanding any other section of this article” prior to 

the last sentence.   Atty Nicoletti stated that he felt this ordinance would provide a clearer 

code for court and legal purposes. Mr. Lucibella then stated that he felt retro changes 



SPECIAL MEETING OF P & Z COMMISSION ON May 21, 1998 

 3

regarding setbacks were unfair and felt these residents, especially in the south end, were 

already at a disadvantage compared to the newly constructed homes.  He added that he 

only had a problem with Example #4 or #5. 

 

Atty Nicoletti again stated that his interest was in the intent of the ordinance.  Vice 

Chairman Bingham stated that the original intent when the south end was incorporated 

into the town was that the owners would purchase two lots and construct one home, 

which has not taken place.  Atty Nicoletti stated that the south end has not changed 

overall with the exception of adding a second story to some of the homes.  Mrs. Bingham 

again mentioned her concern that the septic systems would not be adequate to serve a 

larger home.  Town Manager Lanker reminded her that the Health Dept. reviews the 

plans and is very cognizant of the problems with a smaller lot.  Atty Nicoletti stated that 

it is his intent to address the land use issue for the south end in the near future. 

 

Vice Chairman Bingham suggested that air conditioning (A/C) systems not be permitted 

in the setbacks.  Town Manager Lanker said that one of the most contentious issues has 

been the location of the A/C systems.  Mr. Lucibella and Mr. Gimmy agreed that there is 

a noise issue with the A/C systems.  All the members agreed that A/C systems in the 

setbacks should be discussed at another meeting.  Atty Nicoletti suggested discussing this 

item when the new district is addressed, hopefully in September.  He added that he felt 

this new district boundary would range from Tropical Dr. to the south town limits. Mr. 

Gimmy stated that new technology may also evolve that would make the noise less 

objectionable. 

 

Mr. Gimmy moved to recommend approval of Ordinance No. 509 with the inclusion of 

“notwithstanding any other section of this article” prior to the last sentence, seconded by 

Mr. Lucibella. 

 

Motion Carried – Yea (4).  

 

VII. DISCUSS DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 510 AMENDING SECTION 26-93. 

LOCATION AND HEIGHT OF DOCKS TO FURTHER REGULATE DOCKS 

AND DOLPHIN PILINGS. 

 

Town Manager Lanker stated that this section needs to be clarified to provide a clearer 

interpretation of the code, mentioning the recent variance for a dock concerning a piling 

that encroaches into the setback.  Mr. Lanker advised that the code needed to be more 

specific defining whether the piling is included as a total part of the structure.   He also 

advised that the code should be amended defining where the unattached dolphin pilings 

should be placed and also to address the subject of floating platforms or docks. 

 

Mr. Gimmy suggested allowing the property owners to negotiate amongst themselves 

regarding where the pilings should be placed in the case of an irregular shaped lot and 

utilize the Special Master to determine those cases where an agreement is not reached.  

Mr. Lucibella stated that he was unsure if he would favor arbitration and questioned 

whether the language clearly defines perpendicular in the code.  Atty Nicoletti 



SPECIAL MEETING OF P & Z COMMISSION ON May 21, 1998 

 4

commented that the North Palm Beach code gave authority to the Building Official for 

the placement of the dolphin pilings.  Atty Nicoletti then briefly explained that the 

building department would probably be turned over to the County. 

 

Town Manager Lanker commented that permits were never required for floating docks in 

the past, however, the number has increased to probably 15 and he feels the item should 

be addressed. 

 

Mr. Lucibella stated the proposed language would allow a floating dock between the 

dock and pilings, which may encourage docking vessels on the other side of the dock. 

Mrs. Smith questioned placing the floating platform or dock adjacent to the fixed dock if 

there was adequate space. 

 

Atty Nicoletti suggested amending the language by removing the word use in paragraph 

(e) and limiting the size of the platform or dock.  Mr. Lucibella suggested possibly 

removing or docks from paragraph (e).  Town Clerk Hancsak stated that someone might 

interpret the language in paragraph (e) to mean that the floating platform or dock must be 

placed between the pilings and seawall when there may in fact be sufficient space 

adjacent to the existing dock.  Atty Nicoletti stated a possible solution might be to 

separate the section and regulate it the same as a dock with size and limitations. 

 

Mr. Lucibella moved to refer Ordinance No. 510 back to the staff for further review and 

bring back to this Commission, seconded by Mr. Gimmy. 

 

Motion Carried – Yea (4). 

 

VIII. DISCUSS FUTURE MEETING FOR REMAINING RIGHT-OF-WAYS 

 

Town Manager Lanker advised that there were still several right-of-ways that needed to 

be discussed including: Chickasaw, alleyway between Hudson and Ocean Ave., alleyway 

between Coconut Lane and Ocean Ave., and the extreme end of Coconut Lane. 

 

Mr. Gimmy questioned whether the Hudson Ave. and Ocean Ave. alley could be 

abandoned because the FPL power lines are located there.  

 

Vice Chairman Bingham questioned whether the staff had relayed their recommendation 

that a dock be constructed at the end of the Anna St. right-of-way.  She was advised that 

the staff would review the minutes of the Commission meetings and advise them if they 

had not been already.  

 

Vice Chairman Bingham stated that she felt the P & Z should discuss the issue of hedges 

again.  The other members agreed.  Mrs. Smith questioned whether an adjacent property 

owner could trim hedges that overhang on their property line to which Atty Nicoletti 

advised that the encroaching hedges could be trimmed. 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 



SPECIAL MEETING OF P & Z COMMISSION ON May 21, 1998 

 5

 

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 9:45 a.m.  

 

 

 

 

       __________________________ 

       Vice Chairman Bingham 

 

        

___________________________ 

Town Clerk 

          


